
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS

TRANSPORTATION REVIEW COMMITTEE
 

February 26, 2015
Maricopa Association of Governments Office

302 North First Avenue, Suite 200, Saguaro Room
Phoenix, Arizona

MEMBERS ATTENDING
  Avondale: David Fitzhugh, Chair
  ADOT: Brent Cain
  Apache Junction: Giao Pham
#Buckeye: Jose Heredia for Scott Lowe
#Cave Creek: Ian Cordwell
  Chandler: Dan Cook
*El Mirage: Jorge Gastelum
*Fountain Hills: Randy Harrel  
#Gila Bend: Ernie Rubi
  Gila River Indian Community: Tim Oliver
  Gilbert: Leah Hubbard
  Glendale: Debbie Albert
  Goodyear: Cato Esquivel
  Litchfield Park: Woody Scoutten

   Maricopa (City): Bill Fay for Paul Jepson
  Maricopa County: Jennifer Toth
#Mesa: Jeff Martin for Scott Butler
*Paradise Valley: Jim Shano
  Peoria: Andrew Granger
  Phoenix: Kini Knudson for Rick Naimark
#Queen Creek: Christine Sheehy for

Mohamed Youssef
  Scottsdale: Greg Davies for Paul Basha
  Surprise: Martin Lucero for Mike Gent
  Tempe: Shelly Seyler
  Valley Metro: John Farry
#Wickenburg: Vince Lorefice
  Youngtown: Grant Anderson

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS ATTENDING
*Street Committee: Maria Deeb, City of        
Mesa
*ITS Committee: Catherine Hollow, City of 
      Tempe
*FHWA: Ed Stillings 

* Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee: Denise
       Lacey, Maricopa County 
* Transportation Safety Committee: Renate  
       Ehm, City of Mesa

* Members neither present nor represented by proxy.   + - Attended by Videoconference
    # - Attended by Audioconference

OTHERS PRESENT
Eric Anderson, MAG
John Bullen, MAG
Monique de los Rios-Urban, MAG
Bob Hazlett, MAG
Teri Kennedy, MAG
David Massey, MAG
Brian Rubin, MAG
Eileen Yazzie, MAG

Jessica Blazina, Avondale
Kwi-Sung Kang, ADOT
Ken Kessler, Phoenix
Clem Ligocki, Maricopa County
Kristin Myers, Gilbert
Steven Wilcox, AECOM
Karl Zook, Surprise

1



1. Call to Order

Chair David Fitzhugh from the City of Avondale called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.
Chair Fitzhugh noted that the quorum requirement for the February 26, 2015 Transportation
Review Committee meeting was 13 committee members. Chair Fitzhugh informed the
committee that there were two handouts at the table.

2. Approval of Draft January 29, 2015 Minutes

Chair Fitzhugh asked the committee if there were any comments on the draft January 29,
2015, meeting minutes. There were none. Mr. Grant Anderson moved to approve the January
29, 2015, meeting minutes. Mr. Martin Lucero seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

3. Call to the Audience

There were no public comments from the audience.

4. Transportation Director's Report

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Eric Anderson, MAG Transportation Director, to provide the
Transportation Director's Report. Mr. Anderson reported that January sales tax receipts based
on business activities in December were down 1.7% which had to do with Thanksgiving
falling early last year. The good sales numbers in November offset the sales numbers in
December. He noted that they expected healthy growth in January with revenues associated
with the Super Bowl events.

Mr. Anderson stated that the HURF revenues are stronger as a result of lower fuel prices
leading to higher gasoline consumption. Year-to-date gasoline consumption is up 2.9% over
last year. He noted that HURF revenues have been at 2004 levels, so any growth has been
good news.

Mr. Anderson noted that the Record of Decision on the SR-202L South Mountain Freeway
is expected next month. ADOT is prepared to move into procurement of the public-private
partnership (P3) contract and expects to complete the contract by late fall of 2015 with
construction beginning in early 2016.

Mr. Anderson noted that there was a public meeting for the Spine Study the previous night
with low attendance and that public meetings would be held that night at the Deer Valley
community center and the following Wednesday at Four Points Sheraton South. He also
noted the online tool at http://spine.azmag.gov which allows people to provide input for
priorities and challenges.

He stated that he had received notification on Tuesday, February 24, that MAG had been
awarded a $200,000 grant from FHWA to study integrated corridor management on I-10
through the metropolitan area. He noted that the study would be looking at how ITS
technology is being used to manage incidents and ongoing congestion.

2

http://spine.azmag.gov


He noted that a sheet was being passed around and requested that the Committee members 
confirm their contact information and that the primary member was properly listed.

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Anderson for his report.

5. Consent Agenda

Chair Fitzhugh directed the Committee's attention to the consent agenda item 5A: ADOT
Red Letter Process.

Chair Fitzhugh asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There were
none. Mr. Dan Cook moved to approve the consent agenda. Mr. Grant Anderson seconded
the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

5A - ADOT Red Letter Process

The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, received the ADOT Red Letter
Process report for July 1 through December 31, 2014.

6. Project Changes – Amendment and Administrative Modification to the FY 2014-2018 MAG 
Transportation Improvement Program, the FY 2015 Arterial Life Cycle Program, and as to 
the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Teri Kennedy to present this item. Ms. Kennedy noted that the
project changes in Table A are consolidating the TIP listings for the SR-202L South
Mountain Freeway project into three master listings including preliminary engineering, the
design-build contract, and right-of-way procurement. She noted that as Mr. Eric Anderson
had mentioned, the Record of Decision is expected in March and ADOT wishes to
immediately authorize the right-of-way element to begin procuring right-of-way in the
corridor. The developer contract will fall under the design-build-maintain element.

Ms. Kennedy added that to help monitor and track funding year by year that there are yearly
conversions listed for each of the three phases to show how much Federal funding and RARF
funding will be converted each year.

She noted that Table B included general project changes for the Arterial Life Cycle Program.

Chair Fitzhugh asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There were
none.

Mr. Dan Cook moved to recommend approval of the project changes. Mr. Cato Esquivel
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

7. Project Status Update and Discussion - Transportation Enhancement (TEA) and Safe Routes 
to School Projects (SRTS)

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Eileen Yazzie to present this item. 

3



Ms. Yazzie stated that this item had been heard at the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee and
that they had recommended approving a request that the nine projects ready to obligate this
year be kept on the 2015 schedules and that the two Gilbert projects in 2016 be kept in 2016
and funded.

Ms. Yazzie then provided some background information on this item. She stated that prior
to the passage of MAP-21, Transportation Enhancement (TEA) and Safe Routes to School
(SRTS) were standalone funding programs which were directed to the states and managed
by the state. The state worked with MPOs and COGs to do local calls for projects. After the
passage of MAP-21 in July 2012, these two programs and a recreational trails program was
consolidated into the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP). Shortly after that, MAG
staff had a meeting with ADOT staff regarding the TEA program and outstanding projects
which were not completed but had already been awarded funding through the TEA program.
It was agreed upon that MAG would use TAP funding in 2013 and 2014 to fund
enhancement projects that which needed additional funding based on current engineering
estimates. MAG used its allocation of TAP funding to clean up old projects and to make
them whole and reaffirmed these 11 TEA and SRTS projects through the current TIP. 

Ms. Yazzie noted that the table in the handout showed that MAG received notification from
ADOT proposing to defer eight of the 11 projects to a later year. She stated that member
agencies and MAG staff had been working toward these projects as programmed in 2015.
She said that ADOT had informed them that the TEA and SRTS programs were only given
a certain amount of funding statewide and that ADOT does not have funding available for
these projects currently.

Ms. Yazzie stated that similar to the current CMAQ and TAP projects, agencies with projects
receiving TEA and SRTS funding fill out and return semiannual project status reports to
MAG. She noted that 9 of the projects are on track to obligate in 2015, one of the projects
is scheduled in 2016, and the other needs to defer as it will be ready to obligate in July but
can’t make the June 1 deadline for fiscal year 2015. She requested that the Committee
discuss the possibility of recommending a project prioritization to ADOT to demonstrate that
these projects are ready to go and need to be funded this year as part of their commitment to
the TEA and SRTS programs. She noted the possibility of MAG loaning Federal obligation
authority to ADOT. 

Ms. Yazzie noted that during the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee’s discussion of this item,
it was brought up that if any of these projects are deferred, it would be a financial burden on
agencies to keep these projects alive until as late as 2018. She noted that over time these
projects have been looked down upon by Congress and that we should show them that we
can finish our program. She added that there has been discussion about eliminating the
Transportation Alternatives program from future transportation funding bills.

Mr. Eric Anderson stated that if the Committee agrees with the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Committee’s recommendations that they would be giving MAG staff direction to work with
ADOT to keep these projects on schedule. He stated that since these projects are ready to go,
it is important to get them built. He noted that MAG is always looking for ways to spend the
final dollar of available Federal funds and that these are worthy projects. He added that MAG

4



will work with ADOT to ensure these projects obligate this year or in 2016 as recommended.

Ms. Debbie Albert expressed her agreement with Ms. Yazzie and Mr. Anderson and that 
Glendale supports this recommendation. She noted that putting these projects on hold for up
to three years puts an enhanced burden on the cities and towns to keep consultants on
contract and possibly having to redo environmental assessments. She added that these
projects are safety related.

Mr. Grant Anderson stated that he would like to support what the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Committee recommended and he encouraged the other Committee members to support the
recommendation. He noted that there is an expectation by the cities and towns that put these
projects together as they have spent time and effort on them and that everyone should work
together to make sure these projects get on the ground as quickly as possible.

Mr. Grant Anderson moved to recommend the project prioritization based on project 
development schedule. Ms. Debbie Albert seconded the motion.

Regarding the motion, Chair Fitzhugh inquired regarding additional funding and impacts to
other currently programmed projects. Ms. Yazzie responded that the additional funding
would be in the form of obligation authority. If MAG region obligation authority is being
transferred to ADOT, it would be in the form of a loan which would be repaid to MAG.
ADOT will be held responsible for their prior commitments.

There being no further discussion of the motion, Chair Fitzhugh called for a vote. The
motion carried unanimously.

8. Revised Alignment Changes to Tempe Streetcar Project and Phoenix - Northwest Phase II 
Light Rail Extension

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Eileen Yazzie to present this item.

Ms. Yazzie noted that the requested action is a two part motion. The first part is to approve
the recommended revised alignment for the Tempe Streetcar, and the second part is to
approve the recommended revised alignment for the Northwest Phase II Light Rail
Extension.

Ms. Yazzie stated that the originally approved streetcar alignment was a 2.6 mile route with
a loop in downtown Tempe which proceeded south on Mill Avenue to Southern Avenue. The
project moved forward into the FTA project development process, but it did not receive a
high rating in the FTA Small Starts evaluation process. FTA requested that the region look
at different alignments. Tempe agreed to study different alignments to see if they would score
well. After studying three different alignments and a public involvement process, the Tempe
City Council approved a new proposed alignment in 2014. She noted that this alignment is
3 miles long and has the highest long-term ridership potential of the alignments studied. The
alignment goes to the Marina Heights development, maintains the same loop through
downtown Tempe, proceeds south on Mill Avenue and curves east onto Apache Boulevard
to Dorsey Lane. 

5



Ms. Yazzie stated that the original alignment had a total budget of $137 million, with $58
million coming from an FTA Small Starts grant, $32 million coming from Federal CMAQ
funding, and $47 million coming from the Public Transit Fund (PTF) portion of the regional
half-cent sales tax. She noted that the new alignment’s budgeted costs have increased to $177
million, and that the FTA Small Starts grant request will be increased to the maximum of $75
million. She added that the CMAQ and PTF budgeted cost levels will remain the same and
that there is a need for an additional $23 million in regional or local funding. She noted that
the source of this funding is currently not fully identified, and that Valley Metro and Tempe
are looking for a committed funding source. She stated that by April the exact funding source
of this $23 million will be determined.

Ms. Yazzie stated that regarding the Northwest Extension Phase II, Valley Metro Rail and
MAG originally approved the Locally Preferred Alternative with the project ending on the
east side of Interstate 17. The City of Phoenix felt the need to extend the project to the other
side of Interstate 17 for a greater transit catchment area and that neighborhoods and elected
officials had also requested this. The Phoenix City Council has approved an extension across
the freeway. She noted that this extension increases the budget from $176 million to $300
million and that the large increase is due to the presence of canals, drainage channels, and
the freeway requiring significant infrastructure and possibly a dedicated light rail bridge.

Ms. Yazzie noted that the proposed budget increases the FTA grant request from $75 million
to $118 million, and that the Phoenix Transit 2000 tax will commit funding to the project.
This leaves an existing funding gap of $35 million. The project is not currently planned to
be constructed until 2026, which leaves much time to find funding. She noted that the City
of Phoenix’s new transportation plan and sales tax is anticipated to be sent to voters, so the
likelihood of the project being funded is greater.

Ms. Yazzie stated that the Valley Metro Rail board has recommended MAG accept the
revised LPAs and use the updated alignments as part of the upcoming air quality conformity
analysis. She noted that the air quality conformity analysis will be complete in May and will
go out for public comment in mid-May. She added that the board will approve the updated
Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP) in May, which will have to include the added $23
million funding for the Tempe Streetcar. After the amendments are approved, the Tempe
Streetcar would be submitted for consideration for a FTA Small Starts grant in September,
but that there needs to be a new finding of air quality conformity for that process to move
forward.

Mr. John Farry thanked Ms. Yazzie for her presentation and noted that the amendments were
approved unanimously by the Valley Metro Rail board and are now going through the MAG
committee process. Mr. Farry stated that he would like to stress that the TLCP update has to
be completed by May to fill the funding gaps for both the Northwest Extension Phase II and
the Tempe Streetcar. He noted that funding sources would be identified and that a financial
plan including all costs is needed by July to submit an application for the FTA Small Starts
grant.

Ms. Shelley Seyler stated that Tempe appreciates the support they have been given. Tempe
recognizes the funding gap and is committed to finding the funds to move the project

6



forward. She noted that Tempe has hired a consultant to find creative ways to bridge the
funding gap.

Mr. Grant Anderson noted that the timing of the Tempe project is very good for the
upcoming conformity analysis. He noted that the Northwest Extension Phase II is longer
term, which provides a longer time to find the funding. He asked what would happen if the
transportation sales tax is not approved by voters and whether or not the air quality
conformity analysis would have to be redone. Ms. Yazzie responded that representatives
from Phoenix may have insight into that, but that MAG is looking toward May to have
funding for both projects committed. She noted that with the TLCP update there has to be
reasonably expected available funding. She added that the Tempe Streetcar project funding
is subject to fiscal constraint as it is within the current TIP timeframe, so a committed source
of funding is necessary. The Northwest Extension Phase II is outside of the TIP so only a
reasonably anticipated funding source is necessary. She noted that Phoenix is currently going
through the process to find funding which may come out of the current Transit 2000 tax. She
added that the new transportation plan may go to voters in August, but that the Phoenix City
Council has not decided yet. If Phoenix changes the plan it will be considered during the next
air quality conformity analysis.

Mr. Kini Knudson stated that Mr. Ken Kessler would be discussing this during the next
presentation. He stated that the Northwest Extension Phase II project is very important to
Phoenix as part of the plan that will potentially be going to voters. He noted that the
Northwest Extension to Dunlap Avenue would be open by the end of the year, and that the
extension across the freeway provides an important connection to a major retail center which
is redeveloping. He noted that there is a specific number of miles of light rail in the current
RTP and that Phoenix is not anticipating making any changes to that. He stated that he hopes
with the new Phoenix transportation tax and a potential new RTP that funding for the new
alignment can be found. Mr. Grant Anderson added that the change of alignment is beneficial
to both projects.

Mr. Grant Anderson moved to recommend approval of the revised alignment and cost
changes. Mr. Dan Cook seconded the motion.

Regarding the motion, Mr. Jeff Martin inquired regarding a tentative rating from FTA for the
Tempe Streetcar project. Mr. John Farry responded that preliminary information had been
sent to FTA, and that he was expecting a response in the next month.

Ms. Seyler noted that regarding the public-private partnership, Tempe has hired a consultant
to aid in finding potential partners for a public-private partnership. She added that FTA has
acted favorably on P3s, noting a P3 project in Denver which has received federal funding.

Ms. Yazzie added that the M1 streetcar in Detroit is under construction as a P3, with a
majority of funding coming from private industry and a small portion funded by TIGER
grants.

There being no further discussion of the motion, Chair Fitzhugh called for a vote. The
motion carried unanimously.

7



9. City of Phoenix Proposed Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Funding Options

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Kenneth Kessler of the City of Phoenix to present this item.

Mr. Kessler stated that he is with the Phoenix Public Transit Department and that he wished
to present on the ongoing transportation plan and funding development process. He stated
that the plan would be recommended to the City Council to determine what would be sent
to the voters. 

Mr. Kessler noted that the existing Transit 2000 sales tax was passed in March 2000 and is
set to expire in May 2020. He stated that a new transportation plan and sales tax is needed
as the FTA will not approve further light rail extensions as the City cannot demonstrate that
they have operating funds for any new extension. 

Mr. Kessler stated that Transit 2000 was a great start for Phoenix, as it provided Sunday
service, extended hours, better service in general, and the construction of the light rail
system. He noted that without the tax there will be a $130 million deficit in 2021 leading to
a 60% reduction in bus and light rail service, so it is critical for the city to move forward with
an extension.

Mr. Kessler stated that if the transportation sales tax is maintained at its current level of
0.3%, it would remove 15 miles of currently planned light rail projects and delay other
projects for 3-5 years. He noted that service would be maintained as-is, but that the city
would not be able to enhance bus service. He noted that this would not meet the goals of the
Transit 2000 plan and that the city would not be able to do maintenance or capital projects
on the street network.

Mr. Kessler stated that a 35-member committee of business and citizen representatives
appointed by the Mayor and Council has been meeting since August to develop the plan. He
noted that they received a lot of input from the Public Transit and Streets department and
have developed a draft plan based on public input. He added that the committee had
partnered with ASU for public outreach to narrow down what the public would like to see.

Mr. Kessler noted that the recommended plan has 120 miles of high capacity transit, which
could be light rail, bus rapid transit, or streetcar. For bus service, the plan focuses on filling
in the grid. He noted that during the plan development process, the focus started on transit
and became a broader transportation plan including street needs such as pavement overlays,
bike lanes, and the development of complete streets.

Mr. Kessler stated that the committee had identified policy issues for the City Council to
address, including competition for services, regional connectivity, and additional funding,
noting a $3.5 billion shortfall for street and storm drain infrastructure. He stated that one of
the recommendations was to possibly work with the State Legislature on allowing a local gas
tax or Vehicle License Tax (VLT).

Mr. Kessler stated that the citizens’ committee had recommended an increase in the tax from
0.3% to 0.75% and that the tax should be made permanent but not less than 30 years. The

8



committee also recommended that an oversight committee be put together to ensure funding
and projects are moving appropriately and that the plan give the City Council the flexibility
to reduce the tax should additional funding become available.

The final recommendation by the subcommittee which is going to City Council on March
3rd is a 0.73% sales tax, the Camelback Road Phase 2 taken out, reducing the scope of the
northeast light rail extension to end at Paradise Valley Mall, and specifying the program to
run from January 1, 2016, to December 31, 2050. Other recommendations included keeping
the oversight committee and reallocating $16 million of the public transit funding to the
Phoenix Police Department, which would allow the hiring of 120 officers after 5 years of no
new hiring.

Mr. John Farry noted that the plan includes a lot of light rail and that there is always a
discussion about light rail and its value to the region. He noted the success of the light rail
system for the Super Bowl. He stated that prior to the Super Bowl, the highest one-day light
rail ridership was around 63,000 for an ASU-Oregon football game in October a few years
ago. He stated that the Super Bowl Central and NFL Experience started in downtown
Phoenix on a Wednesday and the system had 74,000 boardings that day. Wednesday through
Friday had over 70,000 boardings per day and that Saturday had 125,000 boardings. He
stated that he believes that competes with what a freeway is able to move. He noted that he
has received nothing but kudos for how Valley Metro was able to get people in and out of
downtown with rail and bus service.

Mr. Martin Lucero stated that it is always good to see how regional partners are doing things.
He congratulated Phoenix on how far they have gotten and encouraged everyone else to work
toward a regional plan for larger projects.

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Kessler for his presentation.

10. Regional Freeway and Highway Program Update

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Bob Hazlett to present this item.

Mr. Hazlett stated that his presentation was provided to the Transportation Policy Committee
the previous week and that he would like to give the Transportation Review Committee an
idea of the status of the Regional Freeway and Highway Program. He provided an overview
of the history of the program along with milestones and cost opinions. He noted that the
program began in 2004 with a total cost opinion of $8.1 billion in 2006 that grew to $15.9
billion in 2008. When the recession hit, the program was rebalanced and the costs reduced
to $9.4 billion in 2009, $9.1 billion in 2012, and $8.9 billion now.

Mr. Hazlett stated that 50% of the program had been completed to date, which is a terrific
achievement by ADOT. He stated that 40% of the program’s funds have been expended, and
that the next 5 years would represent the most activity for the program due to the South
Mountain Freeway, which will bring the program to 60%, with the remaining 40% of funds
to be expended over the following 7 years.

9



Mr. Hazlett noted that the planned freeway system was roughly 50% complete by lane miles,
52% complete by general purpose lane miles, and 590 of 1080 total lane miles are open, with
215 of 360 planned HOV lane miles open. He noted that with the construction of the South
Mountain Freeway, the region’s HOV lane system would surpass Seattle’s in length.

Mr. Hazlett stated that there have been questions about moving, adding, and subfraction
projects within the program. He stated that staff have been looking at the receipts and
expenditures ledger along with revenue and cash flow projections to ensure the best possible
data is available for the program. He noted that there had been inconsistent data in both
models and that potentially completed projects had not been closed out. He added that there
had been issues with costs for the South Mountain Freeway, but that the design-build process
should lead to much more cost certainty.

Mr. Hazlett stated that MAG staff have been working with ADOT to ensure the program is
delivered within the specified funding amounts as approved by Regional Council. He noted
that ADOT has done a terrific job of embracing cost saving ideas from MAG, management
consultants, and ADOT’s internal staff. He stated that there has been much more cost
certainty with projects. He noted that MAG staff have been working with Urban Project
Management, Construction and Maintenance, Financial Management Services, and the State
Engineer’s office, along with the Environmental Planning Groups, the Roadway Design
group, the Bridge group, the Right of Way group, and the Communications group to ensure
the process is moving forward. He noted that they have been working on a cost risk analysis
process to identify and retire project contingencies as early as possible.

Mr. Hazlett stated that the cost risk analysis process was the result of four workshops
conducted by Ms. Chaun Hill with MAG and that through this process they were able to
reduce the cost of the near term improvements from $199.6 million to $189.5 million. He
provided a diagram showing more areas where risk costs could potentially be reduced and
where contingencies may need to be added. He stated that the process will concentrate on
where to retire more risk and that it gives a better idea of costs. Mr. Hazlett stated that these
costs are a 70% probability of the cost and that that is a level where they can enter the costs
into the program. He stated that this gives a better than 50% chance that the costs will come
in line. He noted some risks affecting costs and schedule on upcoming freeway projects
showing a potential of retiring $107 million in risk. 

Mr. Hazlett stated that the next steps will be to complete a cost risk analysis on all remaining
projects in the Regional Freeway and Highway Program, and that Ms. Chaun Hill will be
working on this through the summer. Another step will be to clean up the expenditures ledger
and cash flow model with refined project costs retiring risks. He added that an important step
will be to incorporate the South Mountain Freeway costs at the earliest opportunity. With the
design-build process chosen by ADOT, a firm cost estimate will be available in November. 

Mr. Hazlett stated that he has recommended to the Transportation Policy Committee that a
program balance will be done in early 2016 once the cost risk analysis process is completed.
He noted that this will potentially find money to bring projects back into the program.

Mr. Dan Cook stated that he thinks this is a great analysis. He asked whether they had looked 

10



at the entire program as contingencies are in there? He noted that there may be an
opportunity to reduce contingencies by looking at the program holistically. 

Mr. Hazlett responded that when the cost review of the South Mountain Freeway project was
done in 2010, Regional Council had asked for an independent look of the costs and
contingencies. He noted that there was almost a 76% markup on the project once all of the
contingencies were added up. He stated that the cost risk analysis process began as a result
of this finding. ADOT engaged HDR, and they went through all of the risks from all of the
involved ADOT groups. He stated that the custom had been to carry contingency separately
and that contingencies were piled on top of contingencies, and the process allowed them to
say that maybe they don’t need to carry as much contingency.

Mr. Eric Anderson added that one of the benefits of the process is that in the process of
discussing costs and schedule risks on the project, all of the relevant players on the project
were in one room talking to one another. He noted that not only were they discussing how
to reduce cost and schedule risks, there was one person responsible for managing each risk,
which provides accountability and focus. He stated that with the alternative delivery process
on the South Mountain Freeway, costs can be freed up in 2015 or 2016, as opposed to 2020
with a traditional delivery process. He stated that this is a very cost effective way to free up
money, despite the cost of consultants and staff time.

Mr. Hazlett thanked ADOT staff and the State Engineer’s office for being very good to work
with and they have been able to give us confirmation of some of what has been looked at and
also open up to staff to say that the process will help in the long run. He noted that they are
looking to do 8 more cost risk analyses for projects currently under construction, and that the
Phoenix construction office is on board. He once again expressed his thanks to the State
Engineer’s office and the Urban Project Management group. 

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Hazlett for his presentation.

11. Request for Future Agenda Items

Mr. Grant Anderson inquired regarding an upcoming transportation town hall meeting in
April. Mr. Eric Anderson responded that MAG has respectfully declined to participate.

Mr. Eric Anderson noted that a presentation would be given to Management Committee with
a possible followup presentation to the Transportation Review Committee regarding the
potential designation of the Sonoran Desert tortoise as an endangered species. He added that
in September the US Fish and Wildlife Service will propose additions to the endangered
species list and that the Sonoran Desert tortoise is expected to be proposed. He noted that the
proposed growth areas of the MAG region are in the middle of the tortoise’s habitat and that
this could have major impacts on future development. He added that he has been in
discussion with Vanessa Hickman at ASU regarding advance mitigation measures.

12. Member Agency Update

There were no updates from member agencies.

11



13. Next Meeting Date

The next regular Transportation Review Committee meeting will be scheduled for Thursday,
March 26, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. in the MAG Office, Saguaro Room. 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:21 a.m.

12



1. Call to Order

Chair David Fitzhugh from the City of Avondale called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m.
Chair Fitzhugh noted that the quorum requirement for the February 26, 2015 Transportation
Review Committee meeting was 13 committee members. Chair Fitzhugh informed the
committee that there were two handouts at the table.

2. Approval of Draft January 29, 2015 Minutes

Chair Fitzhugh asked the committee if there were any comments on the draft January 29,
2015, meeting minutes. There were none. Mr. Grant Anderson moved to approve the January
29, 2015, meeting minutes. Mr. Martin Lucero seconded the motion. The motion carried
unanimously.

3. Call to the Audience

There were no public comments from the audience.

4. Transportation Director's Report

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Eric Anderson, MAG Transportation Director, to provide the
Transportation Director's Report. Mr. Anderson reported that January sales tax receipts based
on business activities in December were down 1.7% which had to do with Thanksgiving
falling early last year. The good sales numbers in November offset the sales numbers in
December. He noted that they expected healthy growth in January with revenues associated
with the Super Bowl events.

Mr. Anderson stated that the HURF revenues are stronger as a result of lower fuel prices
leading to higher gasoline consumption. Year-to-date gasoline consumption is up 2.9% over
last year. He noted that HURF revenues have been at 2004 levels, so any growth has been
good news.

Mr. Anderson noted that the Record of Decision on the SR-202L South Mountain Freeway
is expected next month. ADOT is prepared to move into procurement of the public-private
partnership (P3) contract and expects to complete the contract by late fall of 2015 with
construction beginning in early 2016.

Mr. Anderson noted that there was a public meeting for the Spine Study the previous night
with low attendance and that public meetings would be held that night at the Deer Valley
community center and the following Wednesday at Four Points Sheraton South. He also
noted the online tool at http://spine.azmag.gov which allows people to provide input for
priorities and challenges.

He stated that he had received notification on Tuesday, February 24, that MAG had been
awarded a $200,000 grant from FHWA to study integrated corridor management on I-10
through the metropolitan area. He noted that the study would be looking at how ITS
technology is being used to manage incidents and ongoing congestion.

2

http://spine.azmag.gov


He noted that a sheet was being passed around and requested that the Committee members 
confirm their contact information and that the primary member was properly listed.

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Anderson for his report.

5. Consent Agenda

Chair Fitzhugh directed the Committee's attention to the consent agenda item 5A: ADOT
Red Letter Process.

Chair Fitzhugh asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There were
none. Mr. Dan Cook moved to approve the consent agenda. Mr. Grant Anderson seconded
the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

5A - ADOT Red Letter Process

The MAG Transportation Review Committee, by consent, received the ADOT Red Letter
Process report for July 1 through December 31, 2014.

6. Project Changes – Amendment and Administrative Modification to the FY 2014-2018 MAG 
Transportation Improvement Program, the FY 2015 Arterial Life Cycle Program, and as to 
the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Teri Kennedy to present this item. Ms. Kennedy noted that the
project changes in Table A are consolidating the TIP listings for the SR-202L South
Mountain Freeway project into three master listings including preliminary engineering, the
design-build contract, and right-of-way procurement. She noted that as Mr. Eric Anderson
had mentioned, the Record of Decision is expected in March and ADOT wishes to
immediately authorize the right-of-way element to begin procuring right-of-way in the
corridor. The developer contract will fall under the design-build-maintain element.

Ms. Kennedy added that to help monitor and track funding year by year that there are yearly
conversions listed for each of the three phases to show how much Federal funding and RARF
funding will be converted each year.

She noted that Table B included general project changes for the Arterial Life Cycle Program.

Chair Fitzhugh asked the Committee if there were any questions or comments. There were
none.

Mr. Dan Cook moved to recommend approval of the project changes. Mr. Cato Esquivel
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

7. Project Status Update and Discussion - Transportation Enhancement (TEA) and Safe Routes 
to School Projects (SRTS)

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Eileen Yazzie to present this item. 

3



Ms. Yazzie stated that this item had been heard at the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee and
that they had recommended approving a request that the nine projects ready to obligate this
year be kept on the 2015 schedules and that the two Gilbert projects in 2016 be kept in 2016
and funded.

Ms. Yazzie then provided some background information on this item. She stated that prior
to the passage of MAP-21, Transportation Enhancement (TEA) and Safe Routes to School
(SRTS) were standalone funding programs which were directed to the states and managed
by the state. The state worked with MPOs and COGs to do local calls for projects. After the
passage of MAP-21 in July 2012, these two programs and a recreational trails program was
consolidated into the Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP). Shortly after that, MAG
staff had a meeting with ADOT staff regarding the TEA program and outstanding projects
which were not completed but had already been awarded funding through the TEA program.
It was agreed upon that MAG would use TAP funding in 2013 and 2014 to fund
enhancement projects that which needed additional funding based on current engineering
estimates. MAG used its allocation of TAP funding to clean up old projects and to make
them whole and reaffirmed these 11 TEA and SRTS projects through the current TIP. 

Ms. Yazzie noted that the table in the handout showed that MAG received notification from
ADOT proposing to defer eight of the 11 projects to a later year. She stated that member
agencies and MAG staff had been working toward these projects as programmed in 2015.
She said that ADOT had informed them that the TEA and SRTS programs were only given
a certain amount of funding statewide and that ADOT does not have funding available for
these projects currently.

Ms. Yazzie stated that similar to the current CMAQ and TAP projects, agencies with projects
receiving TEA and SRTS funding fill out and return semiannual project status reports to
MAG. She noted that 9 of the projects are on track to obligate in 2015, one of the projects
is scheduled in 2016, and the other needs to defer as it will be ready to obligate in July but
can’t make the June 1 deadline for fiscal year 2015. She requested that the Committee
discuss the possibility of recommending a project prioritization to ADOT to demonstrate that
these projects are ready to go and need to be funded this year as part of their commitment to
the TEA and SRTS programs. She noted the possibility of MAG loaning Federal obligation
authority to ADOT. 

Ms. Yazzie noted that during the Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee’s discussion of this item,
it was brought up that if any of these projects are deferred, it would be a financial burden on
agencies to keep these projects alive until as late as 2018. She noted that over time these
projects have been looked down upon by Congress and that we should show them that we
can finish our program. She added that there has been discussion about eliminating the
Transportation Alternatives program from future transportation funding bills.

Mr. Eric Anderson stated that if the Committee agrees with the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Committee’s recommendations that they would be giving MAG staff direction to work with
ADOT to keep these projects on schedule. He stated that since these projects are ready to go,
it is important to get them built. He noted that MAG is always looking for ways to spend the
final dollar of available Federal funds and that these are worthy projects. He added that MAG

4



will work with ADOT to ensure these projects obligate this year or in 2016 as recommended.

Ms. Debbie Albert expressed her agreement with Ms. Yazzie and Mr. Anderson and that 
Glendale supports this recommendation. She noted that putting these projects on hold for up
to three years puts an enhanced burden on the cities and towns to keep consultants on
contract and possibly having to redo environmental assessments. She added that these
projects are safety related.

Mr. Grant Anderson stated that he would like to support what the Bicycle and Pedestrian
Committee recommended and he encouraged the other Committee members to support the
recommendation. He noted that there is an expectation by the cities and towns that put these
projects together as they have spent time and effort on them and that everyone should work
together to make sure these projects get on the ground as quickly as possible.

Mr. Grant Anderson moved to recommend the project prioritization based on project 
development schedule. Ms. Debbie Albert seconded the motion.

Regarding the motion, Chair Fitzhugh inquired regarding additional funding and impacts to
other currently programmed projects. Ms. Yazzie responded that the additional funding
would be in the form of obligation authority. If MAG region obligation authority is being
transferred to ADOT, it would be in the form of a loan which would be repaid to MAG.
ADOT will be held responsible for their prior commitments.

There being no further discussion of the motion, Chair Fitzhugh called for a vote. The
motion carried unanimously.

8. Revised Alignment Changes to Tempe Streetcar Project and Phoenix - Northwest Phase II 
Light Rail Extension

Chair Fitzhugh invited Ms. Eileen Yazzie to present this item.

Ms. Yazzie noted that the requested action is a two part motion. The first part is to approve
the recommended revised alignment for the Tempe Streetcar, and the second part is to
approve the recommended revised alignment for the Northwest Phase II Light Rail
Extension.

Ms. Yazzie stated that the originally approved streetcar alignment was a 2.6 mile route with
a loop in downtown Tempe which proceeded south on Mill Avenue to Southern Avenue. The
project moved forward into the FTA project development process, but it did not receive a
high rating in the FTA Small Starts evaluation process. FTA requested that the region look
at different alignments. Tempe agreed to study different alignments to see if they would score
well. After studying three different alignments and a public involvement process, the Tempe
City Council approved a new proposed alignment in 2014. She noted that this alignment is
3 miles long and has the highest long-term ridership potential of the alignments studied. The
alignment goes to the Marina Heights development, maintains the same loop through
downtown Tempe, proceeds south on Mill Avenue and curves east onto Apache Boulevard
to Dorsey Lane. 

5



Ms. Yazzie stated that the original alignment had a total budget of $137 million, with $58
million coming from an FTA Small Starts grant, $32 million coming from Federal CMAQ
funding, and $47 million coming from the Public Transit Fund (PTF) portion of the regional
half-cent sales tax. She noted that the new alignment’s budgeted costs have increased to $177
million, and that the FTA Small Starts grant request will be increased to the maximum of $75
million. She added that the CMAQ and PTF budgeted cost levels will remain the same and
that there is a need for an additional $23 million in regional or local funding. She noted that
the source of this funding is currently not fully identified, and that Valley Metro and Tempe
are looking for a committed funding source. She stated that by April the exact funding source
of this $23 million will be determined.

Ms. Yazzie stated that regarding the Northwest Extension Phase II, Valley Metro Rail and
MAG originally approved the Locally Preferred Alternative with the project ending on the
east side of Interstate 17. The City of Phoenix felt the need to extend the project to the other
side of Interstate 17 for a greater transit catchment area and that neighborhoods and elected
officials had also requested this. The Phoenix City Council has approved an extension across
the freeway. She noted that this extension increases the budget from $176 million to $300
million and that the large increase is due to the presence of canals, drainage channels, and
the freeway requiring significant infrastructure and possibly a dedicated light rail bridge.

Ms. Yazzie noted that the proposed budget increases the FTA grant request from $75 million
to $118 million, and that the Phoenix Transit 2000 tax will commit funding to the project.
This leaves an existing funding gap of $35 million. The project is not currently planned to
be constructed until 2026, which leaves much time to find funding. She noted that the City
of Phoenix’s new transportation plan and sales tax is anticipated to be sent to voters, so the
likelihood of the project being funded is greater.

Ms. Yazzie stated that the Valley Metro Rail board has recommended MAG accept the
revised LPAs and use the updated alignments as part of the upcoming air quality conformity
analysis. She noted that the air quality conformity analysis will be complete in May and will
go out for public comment in mid-May. She added that the board will approve the updated
Transit Life Cycle Program (TLCP) in May, which will have to include the added $23
million funding for the Tempe Streetcar. After the amendments are approved, the Tempe
Streetcar would be submitted for consideration for a FTA Small Starts grant in September,
but that there needs to be a new finding of air quality conformity for that process to move
forward.

Mr. John Farry thanked Ms. Yazzie for her presentation and noted that the amendments were
approved unanimously by the Valley Metro Rail board and are now going through the MAG
committee process. Mr. Farry stated that he would like to stress that the TLCP update has to
be completed by May to fill the funding gaps for both the Northwest Extension Phase II and
the Tempe Streetcar. He noted that funding sources would be identified and that a financial
plan including all costs is needed by July to submit an application for the FTA Small Starts
grant.

Ms. Shelley Seyler stated that Tempe appreciates the support they have been given. Tempe
recognizes the funding gap and is committed to finding the funds to move the project

6



forward. She noted that Tempe has hired a consultant to find creative ways to bridge the
funding gap.

Mr. Grant Anderson noted that the timing of the Tempe project is very good for the
upcoming conformity analysis. He noted that the Northwest Extension Phase II is longer
term, which provides a longer time to find the funding. He asked what would happen if the
transportation sales tax is not approved by voters and whether or not the air quality
conformity analysis would have to be redone. Ms. Yazzie responded that representatives
from Phoenix may have insight into that, but that MAG is looking toward May to have
funding for both projects committed. She noted that with the TLCP update there has to be
reasonably expected available funding. She added that the Tempe Streetcar project funding
is subject to fiscal constraint as it is within the current TIP timeframe, so a committed source
of funding is necessary. The Northwest Extension Phase II is outside of the TIP so only a
reasonably anticipated funding source is necessary. She noted that Phoenix is currently going
through the process to find funding which may come out of the current Transit 2000 tax. She
added that the new transportation plan may go to voters in August, but that the Phoenix City
Council has not decided yet. If Phoenix changes the plan it will be considered during the next
air quality conformity analysis.

Mr. Kini Knudson stated that Mr. Ken Kessler would be discussing this during the next
presentation. He stated that the Northwest Extension Phase II project is very important to
Phoenix as part of the plan that will potentially be going to voters. He noted that the
Northwest Extension to Dunlap Avenue would be open by the end of the year, and that the
extension across the freeway provides an important connection to a major retail center which
is redeveloping. He noted that there is a specific number of miles of light rail in the current
RTP and that Phoenix is not anticipating making any changes to that. He stated that he hopes
with the new Phoenix transportation tax and a potential new RTP that funding for the new
alignment can be found. Mr. Grant Anderson added that the change of alignment is beneficial
to both projects.

Mr. Grant Anderson moved to recommend approval of the revised alignment and cost
changes. Mr. Dan Cook seconded the motion.

Regarding the motion, Mr. Jeff Martin inquired regarding a tentative rating from FTA for the
Tempe Streetcar project. Mr. John Farry responded that preliminary information had been
sent to FTA, and that he was expecting a response in the next month.

Ms. Seyler noted that regarding the public-private partnership, Tempe has hired a consultant
to aid in finding potential partners for a public-private partnership. She added that FTA has
acted favorably on P3s, noting a P3 project in Denver which has received federal funding.

Ms. Yazzie added that the M1 streetcar in Detroit is under construction as a P3, with a
majority of funding coming from private industry and a small portion funded by TIGER
grants.

There being no further discussion of the motion, Chair Fitzhugh called for a vote. The
motion carried unanimously.

7



9. City of Phoenix Proposed Comprehensive Transportation Plan and Funding Options

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Kenneth Kessler of the City of Phoenix to present this item.

Mr. Kessler stated that he is with the Phoenix Public Transit Department and that he wished
to present on the ongoing transportation plan and funding development process. He stated
that the plan would be recommended to the City Council to determine what would be sent
to the voters. 

Mr. Kessler noted that the existing Transit 2000 sales tax was passed in March 2000 and is
set to expire in May 2020. He stated that a new transportation plan and sales tax is needed
as the FTA will not approve further light rail extensions as the City cannot demonstrate that
they have operating funds for any new extension. 

Mr. Kessler stated that Transit 2000 was a great start for Phoenix, as it provided Sunday
service, extended hours, better service in general, and the construction of the light rail
system. He noted that without the tax there will be a $130 million deficit in 2021 leading to
a 60% reduction in bus and light rail service, so it is critical for the city to move forward with
an extension.

Mr. Kessler stated that if the transportation sales tax is maintained at its current level of
0.3%, it would remove 15 miles of currently planned light rail projects and delay other
projects for 3-5 years. He noted that service would be maintained as-is, but that the city
would not be able to enhance bus service. He noted that this would not meet the goals of the
Transit 2000 plan and that the city would not be able to do maintenance or capital projects
on the street network.

Mr. Kessler stated that a 35-member committee of business and citizen representatives
appointed by the Mayor and Council has been meeting since August to develop the plan. He
noted that they received a lot of input from the Public Transit and Streets department and
have developed a draft plan based on public input. He added that the committee had
partnered with ASU for public outreach to narrow down what the public would like to see.

Mr. Kessler noted that the recommended plan has 120 miles of high capacity transit, which
could be light rail, bus rapid transit, or streetcar. For bus service, the plan focuses on filling
in the grid. He noted that during the plan development process, the focus started on transit
and became a broader transportation plan including street needs such as pavement overlays,
bike lanes, and the development of complete streets.

Mr. Kessler stated that the committee had identified policy issues for the City Council to
address, including competition for services, regional connectivity, and additional funding,
noting a $3.5 billion shortfall for street and storm drain infrastructure. He stated that one of
the recommendations was to possibly work with the State Legislature on allowing a local gas
tax or Vehicle License Tax (VLT).

Mr. Kessler stated that the citizens’ committee had recommended an increase in the tax from
0.3% to 0.75% and that the tax should be made permanent but not less than 30 years. The

8



committee also recommended that an oversight committee be put together to ensure funding
and projects are moving appropriately and that the plan give the City Council the flexibility
to reduce the tax should additional funding become available.

The final recommendation by the subcommittee which is going to City Council on March
3rd is a 0.73% sales tax, the Camelback Road Phase 2 taken out, reducing the scope of the
northeast light rail extension to end at Paradise Valley Mall, and specifying the program to
run from January 1, 2016, to December 31, 2050. Other recommendations included keeping
the oversight committee and reallocating $16 million of the public transit funding to the
Phoenix Police Department, which would allow the hiring of 120 officers after 5 years of no
new hiring.

Mr. John Farry noted that the plan includes a lot of light rail and that there is always a
discussion about light rail and its value to the region. He noted the success of the light rail
system for the Super Bowl. He stated that prior to the Super Bowl, the highest one-day light
rail ridership was around 63,000 for an ASU-Oregon football game in October a few years
ago. He stated that the Super Bowl Central and NFL Experience started in downtown
Phoenix on a Wednesday and the system had 74,000 boardings that day. Wednesday through
Friday had over 70,000 boardings per day and that Saturday had 125,000 boardings. He
stated that he believes that competes with what a freeway is able to move. He noted that he
has received nothing but kudos for how Valley Metro was able to get people in and out of
downtown with rail and bus service.

Mr. Martin Lucero stated that it is always good to see how regional partners are doing things.
He congratulated Phoenix on how far they have gotten and encouraged everyone else to work
toward a regional plan for larger projects.

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Kessler for his presentation.

10. Regional Freeway and Highway Program Update

Chair Fitzhugh invited Mr. Bob Hazlett to present this item.

Mr. Hazlett stated that his presentation was provided to the Transportation Policy Committee
the previous week and that he would like to give the Transportation Review Committee an
idea of the status of the Regional Freeway and Highway Program. He provided an overview
of the history of the program along with milestones and cost opinions. He noted that the
program began in 2004 with a total cost opinion of $8.1 billion in 2006 that grew to $15.9
billion in 2008. When the recession hit, the program was rebalanced and the costs reduced
to $9.4 billion in 2009, $9.1 billion in 2012, and $8.9 billion now.

Mr. Hazlett stated that 50% of the program had been completed to date, which is a terrific
achievement by ADOT. He stated that 40% of the program’s funds have been expended, and
that the next 5 years would represent the most activity for the program due to the South
Mountain Freeway, which will bring the program to 60%, with the remaining 40% of funds
to be expended over the following 7 years.

9



Mr. Hazlett noted that the planned freeway system was roughly 50% complete by lane miles,
52% complete by general purpose lane miles, and 590 of 1080 total lane miles are open, with
215 of 360 planned HOV lane miles open. He noted that with the construction of the South
Mountain Freeway, the region’s HOV lane system would surpass Seattle’s in length.

Mr. Hazlett stated that there have been questions about moving, adding, and subfraction
projects within the program. He stated that staff have been looking at the receipts and
expenditures ledger along with revenue and cash flow projections to ensure the best possible
data is available for the program. He noted that there had been inconsistent data in both
models and that potentially completed projects had not been closed out. He added that there
had been issues with costs for the South Mountain Freeway, but that the design-build process
should lead to much more cost certainty.

Mr. Hazlett stated that MAG staff have been working with ADOT to ensure the program is
delivered within the specified funding amounts as approved by Regional Council. He noted
that ADOT has done a terrific job of embracing cost saving ideas from MAG, management
consultants, and ADOT’s internal staff. He stated that there has been much more cost
certainty with projects. He noted that MAG staff have been working with Urban Project
Management, Construction and Maintenance, Financial Management Services, and the State
Engineer’s office, along with the Environmental Planning Groups, the Roadway Design
group, the Bridge group, the Right of Way group, and the Communications group to ensure
the process is moving forward. He noted that they have been working on a cost risk analysis
process to identify and retire project contingencies as early as possible.

Mr. Hazlett stated that the cost risk analysis process was the result of four workshops
conducted by Ms. Chaun Hill with MAG and that through this process they were able to
reduce the cost of the near term improvements from $199.6 million to $189.5 million. He
provided a diagram showing more areas where risk costs could potentially be reduced and
where contingencies may need to be added. He stated that the process will concentrate on
where to retire more risk and that it gives a better idea of costs. Mr. Hazlett stated that these
costs are a 70% probability of the cost and that that is a level where they can enter the costs
into the program. He stated that this gives a better than 50% chance that the costs will come
in line. He noted some risks affecting costs and schedule on upcoming freeway projects
showing a potential of retiring $107 million in risk. 

Mr. Hazlett stated that the next steps will be to complete a cost risk analysis on all remaining
projects in the Regional Freeway and Highway Program, and that Ms. Chaun Hill will be
working on this through the summer. Another step will be to clean up the expenditures ledger
and cash flow model with refined project costs retiring risks. He added that an important step
will be to incorporate the South Mountain Freeway costs at the earliest opportunity. With the
design-build process chosen by ADOT, a firm cost estimate will be available in November. 

Mr. Hazlett stated that he has recommended to the Transportation Policy Committee that a
program balance will be done in early 2016 once the cost risk analysis process is completed.
He noted that this will potentially find money to bring projects back into the program.

Mr. Dan Cook stated that he thinks this is a great analysis. He asked whether they had looked 

10



at the entire program as contingencies are in there? He noted that there may be an
opportunity to reduce contingencies by looking at the program holistically. 

Mr. Hazlett responded that when the cost review of the South Mountain Freeway project was
done in 2010, Regional Council had asked for an independent look of the costs and
contingencies. He noted that there was almost a 76% markup on the project once all of the
contingencies were added up. He stated that the cost risk analysis process began as a result
of this finding. ADOT engaged HDR, and they went through all of the risks from all of the
involved ADOT groups. He stated that the custom had been to carry contingency separately
and that contingencies were piled on top of contingencies, and the process allowed them to
say that maybe they don’t need to carry as much contingency.

Mr. Eric Anderson added that one of the benefits of the process is that in the process of
discussing costs and schedule risks on the project, all of the relevant players on the project
were in one room talking to one another. He noted that not only were they discussing how
to reduce cost and schedule risks, there was one person responsible for managing each risk,
which provides accountability and focus. He stated that with the alternative delivery process
on the South Mountain Freeway, costs can be freed up in 2015 or 2016, as opposed to 2020
with a traditional delivery process. He stated that this is a very cost effective way to free up
money, despite the cost of consultants and staff time.

Mr. Hazlett thanked ADOT staff and the State Engineer’s office for being very good to work
with and they have been able to give us confirmation of some of what has been looked at and
also open up to staff to say that the process will help in the long run. He noted that they are
looking to do 8 more cost risk analyses for projects currently under construction, and that the
Phoenix construction office is on board. He once again expressed his thanks to the State
Engineer’s office and the Urban Project Management group. 

Chair Fitzhugh thanked Mr. Hazlett for his presentation.

11. Request for Future Agenda Items

Mr. Grant Anderson inquired regarding an upcoming transportation town hall meeting in
April. Mr. Eric Anderson responded that MAG has respectfully declined to participate.

Mr. Eric Anderson noted that a presentation would be given to Management Committee with
a possible followup presentation to the Transportation Review Committee regarding the
potential designation of the Sonoran Desert tortoise as an endangered species. He added that
in September the US Fish and Wildlife Service will propose additions to the endangered
species list and that the Sonoran Desert tortoise is expected to be proposed. He noted that the
proposed growth areas of the MAG region are in the middle of the tortoise’s habitat and that
this could have major impacts on future development. He added that he has been in
discussion with Vanessa Hickman at ASU regarding advance mitigation measures.

12. Member Agency Update

There were no updates from member agencies.

11



13. Next Meeting Date

The next regular Transportation Review Committee meeting will be scheduled for Thursday,
March 26, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. in the MAG Office, Saguaro Room. 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:21 a.m.

12


	1 - DRAFT February 26 2015
	2 - DRAFT Feb 2015 TRC minutes

